

September 14, 2023, Regular Board Meeting 7:30 – 9:00 AM

Minutes – Board Meeting

Attendance

S3R3 Solutions Board Members present: Greg Birchell, Al French, Paul Katovich, Larry Krauter, Scott Simmons

S3R3 Solutions Board Members present via Zoom: Lori Kinnear

S3R3 Solutions Board Members absent: Garrett Jones

S3R3 Solutions Staff present: Karen Corkins, Project Manager; Sueann Herkel, Executive Assistant; Taudd Hume, Legal

Counsel; Chris Pengra; Executive Director

S3R3 Solutions Staff absent: None

Guests physically present: Mark Brewster (Citizen of Palisades Neighborhood), Hank Bynaker (Airway Heights City Council

Member), Steve MacDonald (City of Spokane), Julia McHugh (Citizen of Palisades Neighborhood)

Guests present via teleconference: Marcia Davis (City of Spokane), Chris Pengra (incoming Executive Director for S3R3

Solutions), Teri Stripes (City of Spokane), Pete Thompson

Meeting called to order 7:33 AM

Welcome and Introductions:

Board Chair Al French requested a roll call, quorum present. Currently, two members are traveling to the meeting.

Board Chair Al French introduced the newest S3R3 Board Member, Paul Katovich as a stakeholder in the area and the person that hosted Washington Senate and House personnel for tours of the new Transload Facility. In addition, the new Executive Director, Chris Pengra, was introduced who provided a brief of his background.

Public Comment/Courtesy of the Floor:

Public Comment was requested by Board Chair Al French. He advised that there will be a three-minute limit. Attendee Julia McHugh reminded the board regarding the contaminated wells in the Palisades Neighborhood (demonstrated by a map she was displaying). She would like the board of S3R3 Solutions to consider the development within S3R3 boundaries, how it affects outlying neighborhoods and to be good neighbors. She acknowledges Board Chair Al French's efforts for aquifer protection. Additionally, she also left two documents for the S3R3 Board to review.

7:42 AM - It is noted that Scott Simmons has joined the board meeting in person.

7:45 AM - It is noted that Greg Birchell has joined the board meeting in person.

Action Item No. 1 - Consent Agenda

Board Chair Al French called for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda Action Item No. 1 which includes minutes for the August 10, 2023 regular Board Meeting and financials for July of 2023. Board Treasurer Scott Simmons motioned for approval for the minutes, Board Vice Chair Larry Krauter seconded, motion passed unanimously.

Project Updates, Presentations

Board Chair Al French discussed the ARPA Funds beginning with an explanation of the need to move the funds from doing a stormwater work to other priorities in the area specifically sewer and water. Board Chair Al French had a discussion with Marlene Feist, Director of Public Works for the City of Spokane specifically addressing the need to spend \$1M on a water booster station and \$1M assisting in providing a sewer lift station. Board Vice Chair Larry Krauter advised that the Spokane International Airport will match the funds for water and sewer as well as search for additional funds. Board Chair Al French further discussed that the City has access to funds and these ARPA funds help close the gap between a loan and funding available. It is estimated that the total cost is \$10M, a figure he plans on requesting during the next Legislative Session. Considering the previous comments, Board Chair Al French asked for a motion to approve after Attorney Taudd Hume

Page Two
Board Meeting Minutes
September 14, 2023

confirmed with Commissioner French that since the Board of County Commissioners designate the use of funds from this particular funding pool, we do not to change the contract, this motion will let us amend the contract. Board Vice Chair Larry Krauter motioned the S3R3 Board modify the prior commitment of \$2M be divided as \$1M each for water and sewer. Board Treasurer Scott Simmons seconded, motion passed unanimously.

A Strategic Direction Discussion was introduced by Board Chair Al French to include external efforts to specifically focus on attracting new business as opposed to supporting who is already within the boundaries of the PDA. Board Secretary Greg Birchell further discussed positioning our brand in the sectors we want to attract and pursuing and creating relationships within those sectors.

Board Secretary Greg Birchell talked briefly about our current contract with Big Sky Public Relations and continuing with them concerning social media. For now, they are fulfilling the needs of S3R3. However, next steps should be considered regarding sectors of interest to include aerospace, advanced manufacturing, logistics and waste haulers. Further discussion ensued with regard to attending trade shows, formulating and writing down a large-scale marketing plan and researching who compliments businesses that already exist in the PDA.

Several comments were made by all members of the board regarding the fact that the PDA is positively situated for success specifically citing that rail already exists. Executive Director Chris Pengra commented that S3R3 should center attention on potential development focusing on who they are, what they are and what they want. Additionally, focus should be on new business that may be in state, out of state or international.

Unfinished Business

None

New Business

None

Board Member Items

None

Executive Session

Board Chair AI French asked for Executive Session to be called to discuss the performance of a public official (RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)). The Executive Session was scheduled to end at 8:45 AM and it was determined that action or a decision would be made after Executive Session. Executive Session was extended to 8:45 AM. At 8:51 AM Executive Session was ended, no decision was made and the September 14, 2023 Board Meeting was adjourned.